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PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

a This appeal is from a resentencing ordered by this Court in 

Crump v. State, 622 So. 2d 963 ( F l a .  1993). The record on appeal 

from the trial and original sentencing will be referred to by the 

page number preceded by the lettere "TR" (trial record). The 

record on appeal from the resentencing will be referred to by the 

page number preceded by the letter 'IR." The transcript of the 

resentencing hearing is not numbered consecutively to the rest of 

the record on appeal, but contains only the court reporter's 

numbering, from page 1 to page 23. Thus, the resentencing 

transcript will be referred to by the page number preceded by the 

letter "T. " 
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On March 23, 1988, a Hillsborough County grand jury indicted 

the Appellant, MICHAEL TYRONE CRUMP for the first-degree murder of 

Lavinia Palmore Clark. (TR. 599-600) Crump was tried by jury March 

27-30, 1989, the Honorable M. Wil l iamGraybi l lpres id ing ,  and found 

guilty as charged. (TR. 661, 688) 

Following the penalty phase, the coizrt instructed the jury to 

consider as aggravation whether: (1) the defendant was previously 

convicted of another capital offense or felony involving violence 

to the person; and (2) the crime was committed in a cold, calcu- 

lated and premeditated manner without pretense of moral or legal 

justification. (TR. 559-60, 685) He instructed the jury to con- 

sider in mitigation whether (1) the crime was committed while the 

defendant was under the influence of extreme mental or emotional 

disturbance; (2) the capacity of the defendant to appreciate the 

criminality of his conduct or to conform his conduct to the 

requirements of law was substantially impaired; and ( 3 )  any other 

aspect of the defendant's character or record or other circumstance 

of the offense. (TR. 686, 560) The jury recommended death by a 

vote of eight to four. (TR. 689) In his written findings support- 

ing the death sentence, rendered the day after the jury's penalty 

recommendation, the judge found the same aggravating and mitigating 

factors upon which he instructed the jury. (TR. 690-91) 

On June 10, 1993, this Caurt vacated the death sentence and 

remanded the case for the trial court to reweigh the aggravating 

and mitigating circumstances and resentence Crump. (R. 10-34) The 
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majority found that the State failed to prove the "cold, calcu- 

lated, and premeditated" aggravating factor beyond a reasonable 

doubt, and failed to specify what statutory and nonstatutory 
0 

mitigating circumstances he found and what weight he gave them. ( R .  

29-30) See Crump v. State, 622 So. 2d 963, 973 (Fla. 1993). 

On remand, the trial court denied defense motions to confirm 

mitigators, to consider new evidence, and to consider testimony of 

a prior psychologist. ( R .  38-39 ,  42-44;  T. 21) On, November 22, 

1993, he again sentenced Crump to death. ( R .  49;  T. 22) In his 

written findings, he found as follows: 

1. The only Aggravating Circumstance established by the 
evidence and proved beyond a reasonable doubt is that the 
Defendant was previously convicted of Murder in the First 
Degree, Aggravated Assault and three counts of Aggravated 
Battery. 

2 .  The only reasonably convincing Mitigating Circum- 
stances established by the evidence are that the Defen- 
dant possessed a few positive character traits and suf- 
fered from mental impairment not reaching the statutory 
standards of mental mitigation. 

3 .  Great weight should be given to the Aggravating 
Circumstance and only slight weight to the Mitigating 
Circumstances. 

4 .  The Mitigating Circumstances fail to outweigh the 
Aggravating Circumstance and the Defendant deserves the 
death penalty for having again committed Murder in the 
First Degree. 

5. The Defendant deserves the death penalty even if his 
mental impairment meets the statutory standards of mental 
mitigation since the Mitigating Circumstances would still 
fail to outweigh the Aggravating Circumstance. 

The aggravated assault and three counts of aggravated 
battery all resulted from one incident, possibly a fight, and were 
part of the same case. Apparently, there were three different 
victims. The batteries were committed without a firearm. (TR. 533) 
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( R .  40-41) 

On December 20, 1993, Crump filed a Notice of Appeal to this 

Court pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(l), Florida Constitution, 

and Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030 (a)(l)(A)(i). (R. 54) 

The Public Defender was appointed to represent Crump on December 

30, 1993. (R. 53) 
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STATEMENT OF THE FACTS 

A. Guilt Phase 

On the morning of December 12, 1985, the nude body of Lavinia 

Palmore Clark was discovered on the north side of Idlewild Avenue 

in Tampa, along a cemetery. (TR. 186-87) During the investiga- 

tion, the detectives determined that Ms. Clark was a prostitute and 

a heavy cocaine user.  (TR. 203) Detective Onheiser, Hillsborough 

Sheriff's Department, worked on the case for about three months 

before putting the case in the closed or "dead" file. (TR. 199-201) 

Detective Robert Parrish of the Tampa Police Department testi- 

fied that on October 9, 1986, he responded to a homicide scene 

where he observed the nude body of a black female in a field next 

to a cemetery.2 (TR. 245-46 )  Tire tracks which appeared to be 

those of a large truck were found at the scene. (TR. 2 5 0 )  Based 

on a description provided by a witness who had seen Areba Smith get 

into a truck the night of the homicide, Tampa police officers 

located the truck, which belonged to Michael Crump, and impounded 

it. (TR. 257, 261) Tim Whitfield, formerly with the Pinellas 

County Sheriff's Office, processed the truck with laser equipment. 

He found hair and fiber evidence. (TR. 280-85) Under the carpet 

on the passenger's side, he discovered the driver's license of 

Lavinia Palmore Clark. (TR. 286-87)  He found what appeared to be 

a restraining device wrapped around the gear shift. (TR. 2 8 9 )  

Evidence concerning the murder of Areba Smith, also a black 
prostitute, was introduced as Williams Rule evidence over defense 
objection and denial of a defense motion to exclude it. (TR. 636) 

5 



On February 1 3 ,  1987, the Appellant, Michael Tyrone Crump, was 

interviewed at the Tampa Police Department. (TR. 263) During the 

course of the interview, he admitted choking Areba Smith. (TR. 265) 

0 

He told police that he picked her up because it started to rain and 

she wanted a ride to the Boston Bar. During the ride, they dis- 

cussed sex and agreed on a price of $10.00. They drove to a field 

by the side of a cemetery. She proceeded to give him a "blow job.'' 

Smith became frustrated because it was taking too long. When she 

pulled out a knife, Crump choked and killed her. (TR. 266-67) 

Michael Malone, special agent with the FBI, testified 

concerning the analysis of hairs and fibers. (TR. 313-26) He 

compared a known hair sample from Lavinia Clark to hair samples 

submitted in the Areba Smith case. A hair found on the carpet of 

Crump's truck exhibited exactly the same individual characteristics 

as the head hair of Lavinia Clark. (TR. 326-27) 

Charles Diggs, medical examiner, testified that he performed 

an autopsy on Lavknia Clark. (TR. 339-42) The cause of death was 

strangulation. (TR. 342-43) She had a bruise on her scalp  behind 

the ear and two bruises beneath the skin on the top of her head, 

indicating that she may have been struck on the head. There was 

slight hemorrhaging in the abdominal wall. No alcohol or drugs 

were present in her blood. Dr. Diggs took vaginal swabs but turned 

them over to law enforcement. (TR. 343-44) Diggs said that there 

appeared to be ligature impressions an the wrists but he did not 

include this in the autopsy report because the marks were faint and 

left no bruising. (TR. 346) 
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Some time after closing the Clark file, Detective Onheiser was 

contacted by the Tampa Police Department concerning Michael Crump. 

Onheiser interviewed Crump on February 4 ,  1987. (TR. 355)  Crump 

told him that he once picked up Lavinia Clark near a bar. He 

offered her a ride and she accepted. She was in his truck f o r  

about ten minutes. When they got into an argument, he pulled over 

to the side of the road and pushed her out of the truck. This was 

the last time he saw her. (TR. 356-57) 

Crump did not remember exactly what he and Clark argued about. 

There was no struggle other than his pushing her out of his truck. 

She left behind her purse. He discarded it, keeping only her 

driver's license. He didn't know why he kept the license. He saw 

Clark's picture in the newspaper later on. He hid the license 

behind the electric meter box at his house. When they moved, he 

hid it under the carpet in his truck. (TR. 3 5 9 )  

The defense did not present a case. (TR. 3 6 6 )  Following 

closing arguments and jury instructions, the jury found Michael 

Crump guilty of first-degree murder. (TR. 439) 

B. Penalty Phase 

A t  penalty phase the following day, Mittie Render, the 

Appellant's mother, testified that Crump was a slow learner in 

school. (TR. 458-59) She described her son as "kind, considerate, 

thoughtful and playful.'' She said that Michael was friendly and 

outgoing and helped anyone who needed help. (TR. 459-60)  

Crurnp's sister, Gloria Baker, a licensed practical nurse, 
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testified that she and her family lived with her mother at one 

time. She helped care for Crump when he was an infant and small 

child. (TR. 463-66) She moved out of the house when Michael was 

seven but kept in close contact. Michael got along well with the 

family and did a lot of work around the house. (TR. 466-68) Baker 

testifiedthat Crump was presently married and had three daughters. 

One was ten or eleven and twins were four years old. (TR. 467) 

0 

Another sister, Christina Taylor, never lived at home when 

Michael was growing up but went by daily. After she moved to St. 

Petersburg, Michael visited her during the summer. He got along 

well with her children and helped around the house. (TR. 468-70) 

Patricia Howard was a neighbor o f  Christina Taylor in St. Peters- 

burg. (TR. 472-73) Although currently a teacher, Ms. Howard was 

formerly a social worker with HRS. (TR. 474) She testified that 

Michael visited her frequently when he was a child, talked to her, 

helped around the house, and babysat while she went to the store. 

He was very good with her four children. (TR. 474-75) She saw no 

evidence of violence in Michael. (TR. 4 7 5 )  

Dr. Maria Elena Isaza, a clinical psychologist and adjunct 

professor at the University of South Florida, was provided with raw 

data and t e s t  results from Dr. Berland. (TR. 226-28) Dr. Isaza 

testified that Berland administered tests to Crump in 1987. She 

had not spoken with Dr. Berland. (TR. 498) On cross-examination, 

the State attempted to impeach Dr. Isaza's credibility by pointing 

out that she was appointed in this case only four days earlier for 

the purpose of testifying in mitigation during the penalty phase. 
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Dr. Berland was unable to testify because he was out-of-town. (TR. 

226) She first saw Crump the day prior to her testimony, after his 

conviction in this case. (TR. 483-84, 4 9 7 )  She interviewed Crump 

and did additional testing for 3 1/2 hours. The testing showed 

that Crump had poor planning ability. His verbal score was much 

lower than his performance score which indicated that Crump waa 

"more of a doer than a thinker." His judgment was consistently 

poor. Crump had poor impulse control; he acted first and reflected 

later, He also had poor reflecting ability. (TR. 487-88)  Because 

he was not capable of much planning, if he killed someone, he would 

have done it on the spur of the moment. (TR. 505-06) 

0 

Michael Crump grew up without a father figure. (TR. 4 8 7 )  Dr. 

Isaza said that, although Crump first comes across as a very mean, 

tough, intimidating individual, when you talk with him he has the 

capacity to be warm and caring. He is only comfortable, however, 

when he trusts someone. If he perceives a threat, he feels 

persecuted or exploited and anticipates that he will be diminished. 

He is very sensitive to rejection and any criticism, especially 

from women. When he feels threatened, he may act in a violent way, 

impulsively and without reflection. (TR. 4 8 9 )  

Dr. Isaza concluded that Crump suffered from "hypervigilance, I' 

or a sense of feeling threatened. (TR. 4 8 9 )  She found some indi- 

cation of sporadic hallucinations or hearing "god voices talking to 

him." He had difficulties in sexual development and adjustment -- 
a feeling of sexual inadequacy or a feeling that his manhood 

depended on his sexual performance. (TR. 4 9 0 )  Crump told Dr. Isaza 
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that he was shy and had difficulty establishing relationships with 

women. (TR. 509)  Crump's symptoms were consistent with a paranoid 

personality disorder. (TR. 4 9 0 )  

According to Dr. Isaza, Crump was under the influence of 

extreme mental or emotional disturbance at the time of the offense 

and his capacity to appreciate the criminality of his conduct or to 

conform his conduct to the law was substantially impaired. (TR. 

4 9 4 ,  510) She opined that, if Crump was with a prostitute and it 

was taking too long, this could trigger the impulsive reaction he 

suffered from. (TR. 510) He could become delusional, believing 

that he was threatened, abused, or mistreated. (TR. 511) 
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SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 

Michael Crump has never had the sentencing hearing contem- 

plated by Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.780, which governs 

sentencing proceedings in capital cases. When he was originally 

sentenced to death, the trial court held the sentencing hearing the 

day after the penalty verdict was rendered, sentencing Michael 

Crump to death before counsel had time to adequately prepare for 

sentencing, and before he had time to reflect on the sentence. The 

judge had already prepared his order sentencing Appellant to death 

prior to the hearing, and so was in no position to consider any 

evidence or arguments made. He filed his findings supporting the 

death sentence contemporaneously. (TR. 690-91) (See Issue 111) 

Additionally, because Dr. Robert Berland was out-of-town 

during Crump's original penalty proceeding, the judge and jury did 

not have the benefit of his testimony concerning his prior testing 

and evaluation of Crump. Dr. Maria Elena Isaza, a clinical psycho- 

logist and professor at the University of South Florida, filled in 

for him at the last minute and, thus, was not as well informed or 

prepared. (TR. 483-84) Moreover, Crump's jury was instructed to 

consider the "cold, calculated and premeditated" ( "CCP" ) aggravat- 

ing factor, with no limiting definition. The CCP aggravator was 

found invalid by this Court on direct appeal. Crump v. State, 622 

So. 2d 963 (Fla. 1993). (See Issues IV and V) Thus, the judge's 

sparse initial sentencing order was based on a less than adequate 

jury recommendation and sentencing evidence, and was made with 

little time for reflection. 
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The trial judge did the same thing at Crump's resentencing. 

He prepared his almost equally sparse sentencing order prior to the 

resentencing and refused to hear new evidence. (See Issues I and 

111) Although he allowed argument of counsel and a brief statement 

by the Appellant, he did not consider them because he immediately 

sentenced Crump to death and filed his pre-prepared sentencing 

order. (See Issue 111) The trial judge merely clarified his prior 

finding that the mental mitigators "may have" been established, 

finding instead that Crump's mental impairment constituted non- 

statutory mental mitigation, and expanded his previous reliance on 

the "catchall" nonstatutory mitigator, to state that Crump had Ira 

few" unspecified "positive character traits. '' 

Defense counsel filed a pretrial motion requesting that the 

t r i a l  court consider Dr. Berland's testimony from Crump's other 

capital case. Because Dr. Berland was unable to testify in the 

penalty phase of Crump's original trial, and because this Court 

remanded the case specifically so that the judge could clarify his 

indecisive written findings concerning the mental mitigation, it 

was especially important for the court to consider Dr. Berland's 

testimony. Although the prosecutor told the judge that she had no 

objection to his considering Dr. Robert Berland's testimony from 

Crump's penalty trial in his other capital case, the judge still 

refused to consider it. (T. 4 ,  11, 21) (See Issue I(A)) 

Defense counsel also filed a motion to introduce evidence that 

Crump had adjusted well to prison life. The prosecutor objected to 

evidence concerning Crump's behavior in prison only because she had 
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not called the prison and had no way to rebut it, and not because 

she thought it was inadmissible. Had the trial court allowed the 

evidence and scheduled an allocution hearing to consider it, the 

prosecutor would have had time to investigate Crump's prison 

record, thus mooting her objection. (See Issues I ( B )  and 111) 

Perhaps because he refused to hear defense counsel's proffered 

mitigating evidence, as is required by due process and by this 

Court, or perhaps because he already had his mind made up,' the 

trial court failed to give sufficient weight to the mitigating 

factors. (See Issue 11) Although Dr. Isaza's unrebutted testimony 

showed that the two statutory mitigators were met, the trial court 

found them to be nonstatutory mitigation, not rising to the level 

of statutory mitigation. As further nonstatutory mitigation, he 

found that Crump had "a few positive character traits." He did not 

specify them or discuss any of the mitigation as to which the 

witnesses testified, as has been required by this Court. 

Defense counsel suggested at sentencing that the judge should 

order a whole new penalty proceeding because the invalid CCP 

instruction tainted the jury's recommendation. (See Issue V) 

Unfortunately, the trial judge believed that all he was required to 

do was to reweigh the circumstances and bring Crump back to court 

and resentence him. He said he was not even required to appoint 

counsel and hold a hearing. Thus, he was obviously not inclined to 

' That the judge was predisposed to sentence Crump to death 
is evidenced by his final written finding -- that Crump deserved 
death even if the mental mitigation met the statutory requirements. 
In other words, he would sentence Crump to death "no matter what. I* 
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entertain a motion far a new penalty proceeding. 

Although it is true that this Court did not order a new 

penalty proceeding in Crump's previous appeal, neither did it 

specifically prohibit such a proceeding. Moreover, it is clearly 

required now because of this Court's more recent decision in 

Jackson V. State, 19 Fla. L. Weekly S215 (Fla. A p r .  21, 1 9 9 4 ) .  The 

weighing of an invalid aggravating circumstance violates the Eighth 

Amendment. EsDinosa v. Florida, 5 0 5  U.S. -, 112 S. Ct. 2926, 120 

L. Ed. 2d 854, 858 (1992). It would be better to have the case 

straightened out now than, possibly, in a future post-conviction 

proceeding. (See Issue IV) Accordingly, this court should remand 

for a complete new sentencing proceeding before a newly empaneled 

jury. (See Issues IV and V) 

After this Court struck the CCP aggravator, the trial court 

was left with only one aggravating circumstance. He refused to 

reconsider other aggravators, finding only the one aggravator 

(prior violent felony) and several nonstatutory mitigators 

including the two mental mitigators which he consider as nonstatu- 

tory mitigation. His final mitigator -- a few positive character 
traits -- actually encompassed a number of factors that this Court 
has found mitigating. This Court has never upheld a death sentence 

based on only one aggravating factor,  except when there is little 

or no mitigation. Such is not the case here. Thus, death is not 

proportionately warranted in this case. Crump's death sentence 

should be vacated and the case remanded for a life sentence. (See 

Issue VI) 
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ARGUMENT 

ISSUE I 

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED BY DENYING THE 
APPELLANT'S MOTION TO CONSIDER NEW 
EVIDENCE AT THE RESENTENCING. 

This Court affirmed Crumpls conviction for first-degree 

murder, but vacated his death sentence and remanded the case to the 

trial judge to "reweigh the circumstances and resentence Crump. 

Crump v. State, 622 So. 2d 963, 973 (Fla. 1993). Although the 

trial judge purported to reweigh the aggravating and mitigating 

circumstances before again sentencing Crump to death, he refusedto 

allow the defense to present any mitigating evidence, denying the 

defense motions to consider (1) evidence that Crump had adjusted 

well to prison life, and ( 2 )  the testimony of Dr. Robert M. Berland 

concerning Crump's mental mitigation. ( R .  42-44 ,  T. 21) According- 

ly, if Crump's sentence is not reduced to life, this Court must 

vacate his death sentence and remand the case for resentencing.' 

In every criminal case, the Constitution guarantees the right 

of the accused to have witnesses t e s t i f y  in his favor. Washinqton 

v. Texas, 388 U.S. 14 (1967). Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 

3.720(b) requires the court at every sentencing to "[eJntertain 

submissions and evidence by the parties which are relevant to the 

sentence." This provision is mandatory, and if the trial court 

refuses to allow a defendant to present matters in mitigation, the 

' See the proportionality argument in Issue VI, infra, as to 
why Crump's sentence should be reduced to life. If a resentencing 
is ordered instead, however, it should be a new penalty proceeding 
with a new jury for reasons discussed in Issues IV and V, infra. a 15 



case must be remanded for a sentencing hearing and resentencing. 

Harqis v. State, 451 So. 2d 551 (Fla. 5th DCA 1984); Miller v. 

State, 435 So. 2d 258 (Fla. 3d DCA 1983). Because the need for the 

0 

trial court to have all available information before sentencing is 

even more important where, as here, the defendant is faced with the 

ultimate sanction of death, a separate criminal procedure r u l e  

governs the presentation of evidence in capital sentencing hear- 

ings. Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.780 reads as follows: 

RULE 3.780 SENTENCING HEARING FOR 
CAPITAL CASES 

(a) In all proceedings based upon section 
921.141, Florida Statutes, the state and the 
defendant will be permitted to present evi- 
dence of an aggravating or mitigating nature, 
consistent w i t h  the requirements of the stat- 
ute. Each side will be permitted to cross- 
examine the witnesses presented by the other 
side. The state will present evidence first. 

(b) The trial judge shall permit rebuttal 
testimony. 

(c) Both the state and the defendant will 
be given an equal opportunity for argument, 
each being allowed one argument. The state 
will present argument first. 

Thus, the rule which specifically pertains to capital cases, like 

its counterpart which pertains to sentencings in general, requires 

the court to entertain evidence relevant to the sentence the defen- 

dant should receive. See also S 921.141(1), Fla. Stat. (1993). The 

sentencer in a capital case may not refuse to consider any relevant 

evidence which the defense offers as a reason for imposing a 

sentence less than death. Parker v. Dusser, 498 U.S. 308 (1991); 

McCleskev v. Kemp, 481 U.S. 279 (1987); Hitchcock v. Duqqer, 481 
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U.S. 393 (1987); Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 586 (1978); O'Callashan 

v. State, 542 So. 2d 1324 (Fla. 1989). "[TJhe only limitation on 

introducing mitigating evidence is that it be relevant to the case 

at hand . . . ." Kins v. State, 514 So. 2d 354, 358 (Fla. 1987). 
The evidence Appellant proffered was certainly relevant to the 

0 

sentence he should receive. He wanted to present psychological 

evidence to support the statutory mental mitigators which is 

precisely the type of evidence this Court has found mitigating in 

numerous cases. See, e.q., DeAnselo v. State, 616 So. 2d 440 (Fla. 

1993) (sentence reduced to life based, in part, on Dr. Robert M. 

Berland's testimony concerning defendant's mental disorders); 

Nibert v. State, 574 So. 2d 1059 (Fla. 1990) (sentence reduced to 

life in part because of mental mitigators established by Dr. Sidney 

Merin's testimony); Santos v. State, 591 So. 2d 160 (Fla. 1991) 

(remanded for trial court to consider mental mitigation). Crump 

also wanted to present evidence of his good behavior in prison 

since he had been on death row, evidence of the type which, again, 

has been consistently recognized by the courts as valid mitigation. 

See, e.q., Skipper  v. South Carolina, 476 U.S. 1 (1986); Sonqer v. 

- I  State 544 So. 2d 1010 (Fla. 1989); Valle V. State, 502 So. 2d 1225 

(Fla. 1987). 

This Court has determined that the defense must be permitted 

to present new evidence in mitigation at a resentencing. See, e.q., 

Lucas v. State, 490 So. 2d 943 (Fla. 1986). In Lucas, the trial 

judge refused Lucas' requests for permission to present additional 

evidence. Instead, the judge reviewed the old transcripts and 
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again sentenced Lucas to death. On appeal Lucas claimed, and this 

Court agreed, that the trial judge erred by not allowing him to 

present additional mitigating evidence. z. at 945.  This Court 

held that both sides should have been allowed to present additional 

0 

testimony and argument at the resentencing proceeding. 

Similarly, in Scull v. State, 569 So. 2d 1261 (Fla. 1990), 

this Court held that the trial judge's haste in resentencing Scull 

without allowing defense counsel time to prepare and present 

evidence violated Scull's due process rights. 

One of the most basic tenets of Florida law is the re- 
quirement that all proceedings affecting life, liberty, 
or property must be conducted according to due process. 
Art. I, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. While we often have said 
that "due process" is capable of no precise definition, 
e.q. Gilmer v. Bird, 15 Fla. 410 (1875), there neverthe- 
less are certain well-defined rights clearly subsumed 
within the meaning of the term. 

The essence of due process is that fair notice and a 
reasonable opportunity to be heard must be given to 
interested parties before judgment is rendered. Tibbetts 
v. Olson, 91 Fla. 824, 108 So. 679 (1926). Due process 
envisions a law that hears before it condemns, proceeds 
upon inquiry, and renders judgment only after proper 
consideration of issues advanced by adversarial parties. 
State ex rel. Munch v. Davis, 143 Fla. 236, 244, 196 So. 
491, 494 (1940). In this respect the term "due process" 
embodies a fundamental conception of fairness that de- 
rives ultimately from the natural rights of all individu- 
als. See Art. I, Sec. 9, Fla. Const. 

5 6 9  So. 2d at 1252. Accordingly, this Court determined that the 

totality of events leading up to Scull's resentencing violated the 

basic requirements of due process. The appearance of irregularity 

so permeated the proceedings as to justify suspicion of unfairness 

which, the Court held, was "as much a violation of due process as 

actual bias would be. I' - Id. 
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On Petition for Clarification, the Scull Court attached the 

following clarification: 

On remand there will be no need of empaneling a new 
penalty-phase jury. The new proceedings will be before 
the judge. This is because the errors that required the 
present remand occurred after the penalty-phase jury 
already had completed its deliberations and made its 
recommendation. Obviously, these errors did not taint 
the jury's advisory role below. 

At the penalty phase on remand, the defendant will be 
entitled to present to the iudqe anv new mitisatinq 
evidence he wishes and also will be entitled to rely upon 
any other mitiqatinq evidence available in the record as 
it now exists. Likewise, the state will be entitled to 
present any new aggravating evidence it wishes and also 
may rely upon aggravating factors already established in 
the present record. If mitigating or aggravating evi- 
dence already exists in this record, there will be no 
need of either the defense or the state reproducing it 
through "live" testimony before the judge on remand. 
Both sides may rely upon the transcripts to this end. 

569 So. 2d at 1253 (emphasis added). 

The above directive from this Court sets out the requirements 

Clearly, the trial court is required to allow 

In 

for a resentencing. 

the defendant to present any new mitiqatinq evidence he wishes. 

the instant case, the trial court erred by disallowing the 

mitigating evidence proffered by defense counsel and by rushing to 

resentence Crump to death.5 As this Court stated in Scull, 569  So. 

2d at 1252, "Haste has no place in a proceeding in which a person 

may be sentenced to death. 

Reading between the lines, it appears that, in this case, 
the judge refused to consider the mitigating evidence proffered by 
defense counsel because he had already prepared his written sen- 
tencing order and did not want to take time to schedule another 
hearing, consider further evidence, and revise his written order. 
This same judge originally sentenced Crump to death the day after 
the jury recommendation and had already prepared his order prior to 
that sentencing hearing. (TR. 5 8 6 ,  6 9 5 )  

19 



In this case, Crump never really had the sentencing hearing 

contemplated by the rules of criminal procedure before he was 

originally sentenced to death on March 31, 1989 (TR. 5 8 6 ) ,  because, 

as in the instant resentencing, the trial judge had already 

prepared his order sentencing Appellant to death prior to the 

hearing, and so was in no position to consider any evidence or 

arguments that Appellant made. He held the sentencing hearing the 

day after the penalty verdict was rendered, sentencing Michael 

Crump to death before defense counsel had time to adequately 

prepare for  sentencing, and before he had time to reflect on the 

sentence. (TR. 5 8 6 ,  695) He filed his written findings contempora- 

neously. (TR. 690-91) Thus, the judge's sparse initial sentencing 

order was based on made without the benefit of sentencing evidence 

0 

and with little time for reflection. 

The trial judge did the same thing this time. He prepared his 

almost equally sparse sentencing order prior to the resentencing 

and refused to hear new evidence.6 Although he allowed argument 

of counsel and a brief statement by the Appellant, he did not 

consider them because he immediately sentenced Crump to death and 

filed his pre-prepared sentencing order. (See Issue 111, infra.) 

A t  the resentencing hearing, the prosecutor agreed with 

defense counsel that Crump should be permitted to present new 

' The trial judge merely clarified his findings concerning 
the mental mitigation, finding that Crump's mental impairment 
constituted nonstatutory mental mitigation rather than that the 
statutory mental mitigators "may have" been established, and 
expanded his reliance on the "catchall" statutory mitigator to 
state that Crump had "a few" unspecified "positive personality 
traits." (TR. 690-91, R. 40-41) 
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evidence pertaining to what weight the court should give to the 

aggravating and mitigating circumstances. (T. 4 )  Although she told 

the judge that she had no objection to his considering Dr. Robert 

Berland's testimony from Crump's penalty trial in his other capital 

case, the judge still refused to consider it. (T. 4 ,  11, 21) She 

objected to evidence concerning Crump's behavior in prison only 

because she had not called the prison and had no way to rebut it, 

and not because she thought it was inadmissible. Had the trial 

court allowed the evidence and scheduled an allocution hearing to 

consider it, the prosecutor would have had time to investigate 

Crump's prison record, thus mooting her objection. 

(A) The trial court erred by denying the 
defense motion to consider Dr. Berland's 
testimony from Crump's prior trial. 

In remanding this case for resentencing, this Court noted that 

the sentencing order was unclear as to the statutory mitigating 

circumstances found by the trial court. The order stated that 

Crump "may have possibly" committed the capital felony while under 

the influence of extreme mental or emotional disturbance, and that 

Crump's ability to appreciate the criminality of his conduct or 

conform his conduct to the requirements of law "may have possibly" 

been substantially impaired. The sentencing order was sparse 

because it failed to specify what statutory and nonstatutory 

mitigating circumstances the trial judge found and what weight he 

gave the circumstances. See Crump v. State,  622 So. 2d a t  973. 

Defense counsel filed a pre-hearing "Motion to Consider Testi- 

He advised the court that Dr. Robert mony of Prior Psychologist." 



Berland testified in the second phase of Crump' s prior murder trial 

(the Areba Smith case for which he received a life sentence). At 

Crump's original trial in this case, Dr. Berland was unable to 

testify due to a scheduling conflict. Thus, Dr. Isaza evaluated 

and tested Crump in the late afternoon on the day before the 

penalty proceeding, and testified in place of Dr. Berland. Defense 

counsel represented at Crump's resentencing that Dr. Berland's 

testimony in the prior case was essentially the same as Dr. Isaza' s 

testimony concerning the issue of whether Crump was under extreme 

mental and emotional distress at the time of the offense, and 

whether Crump's ability to appreciate the criminality of his 

conduct and to conform his conduct to the requirements of law was 

impaired. Because the trial judge stated in his original order 

that Crump proved that he rrmaylv have been under extreme mental and 

emotional distress, and that his ability to appreciate the crimi- 

nality of his conduct "may" have been substantially impaired, Dr. 

Berland's prior testimony and report would have substantiated the 

findings of Dr. Isaza that the two statutory mental mitigators were 

established. (R. 4 3 - 4 4 )  

Additionally, because Berland had tested and interviewed Crump 

in 1987, much closer to the time of the offenses, and had testified 

at the earlier penalty proceeding at which Crump received a life 

recommendation, Dr. Berland would certainly have added the much 

needed detail so that the trial judge could have made a more 

reliable and reasoned decision as to whether the mental mitigators 

were applicable. A t  the first sentencing hearing, defense counsel 
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had testified that Crump was a paranoid schizophrenic and Dr. Isaza 

had testified that he had a paranoid personality disorder, (TR. 0 
5 8 2 )  Because Dr. Berland's testing and examination were much more 

extensive (Dr. Isaza was called in at the last minute and evaluated 

Crump the evening before penalty phase), his testimony would 

certainly have been more detailed and helpful. The judge apparent- 

ly was not interested in making a reasoned decision, however, but 

only in clearing up the indecisive language in his prior order so 

it would pass muster with this Court. 

At the sentencing hearing, although the prosecutor said she 

had no objection to the judge's consideration of Dr. Berland's 

prior testimony (T. 4 ) ,  the judge stated: 

Now the State is saying that at this type of a hearing, 
the Court may consider Defendant ' s Motion to Consider New 
Evidence. I'm not certain that's correct. But if that 
is correct, Ms. Cox, well, then the State, a fortiori, 
must agree that the Court can consider the testimony of 
psychologist Robert M. Berland because, in essence, that 
would be new evidence, but you objected to that. But 
it's immaterial. [Note that the prosecutor said she did 
not object to it. (T. 4)J All Dr. Berland, according ta 
this motion, would testify to is essentially the same 
thing that Dr. Isaza testified to. (T. 11) 

When defense counsel asked to argue t h i s  further, the 

following transpired: 

THE COURT: I already said what if I consider Berland, 
it's the same thing that Dr. Isaza said. Why do I have 
to hear anymore, except you got two doctors that said the 
same thing? 

MR. CUNNINGHAM: Except the Court, in its findings, 
said we prove that Mr. Crump may have -- 

THE COURT: No, I did not. I said possibly may. 

MR. CUNNINGHAM: The appellate court decision hung on 
the word "may." 
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THE COURT: I can't help what the' appellate court did. 
I know what I found, and now I 've been ordered to reweigh 
the circumstances and forget "planned" killing. 

MTI. CUNNINGHAM: In regards to Dr. Berland's testimo- 
ny, that motion is aimed at backing up what Dr. Isaza 
said. If the Court recalls, Dr. Isaza had some difficul- 
ty with the language, I believe. She spoke with a rather 
heavy accent, and the State cross-examined her heavily 
about whether Michael Crump was, in fact, at the time of 
the offense under an extreme emotional disturbance or 
suffering from an impairment to his mental abilities to 
control, not insane, not incompetent, but to control his -- conform his actions to law. 
I went through the transcript. D r .  Isaza, in the tran- 
script, clearly states that kt was in her opinion . . . 
within the bounds of reasonable psychological certainty 
that he was or probably was, which is within the bounds 
of reasonable, probable certainty, under an extreme 
mental distress at the time and impaired to the point 
where he could not control his -- the second . . . 
mitigator that the Court consider . . she answered. 
What I'm trying to explain . . . that this extreme 
emotional disturbance can occur at different times. He's 
unpredictable. So at that particular time, he probably 
could have been, referring back to, under an extreme 
emotional disturbance. (T. 12-13) 

Defense counsel continued trying to explain what D r .  Isaza 

said that caused the judge to pick up on the word "may."' (T. 14) 

His obvious implication was that Dr. Berland's testimony would help 

clarify the matter for the judge who seemed undecided when he wrote 

his sentencing order. The judge denied the motion. (T. 21) 

As defense counsel tried to explain, the point of this Court's 

remand was for the trial judge to determine whether the mental 

It is virtually impossible for any expert to say for 
certain that a defendant who suffers from mental illness triggered 
by certain situations was afflicted with the disorder at the time 
of the killing, because the expert was not there when the killing 
occurred. Generally, as was the case here, there are no witnesses 
to the murder, and certainly none who can make a mental diagnosis. 

24 



mitigators were applicable, what nonstatutory mitigation he 

considered and the weight he gave it, while excluding from his 

consideration the inapplicable CCP aggravating factor: 

The sentencing order is unclear as to the statutory 
mitigating circumstances found by the trial court. The 
sentencing order shows that Crump "may have possibly" 
committed the capital felony while under the influence of 
extreme mental or emotional disturbance, and that Crump's 
ability to appreciate the criminality of his conduct or 
conform his conduct to the requirements of law "may have 
possibly'' been substantially impaired. The sentencing 
order also shows that the t r i a l  judge considered "[a]ny 
other aspect of [Crump's] character or record, and any 
other circumstance of the offense as evidenced by expert 
and lay testimony in the case." 

The sentencing order in the instant case is sparse 
because it fails to specify what statutory and nonstatu- 
tory mitigating circumstances the trial judge found and 
what weight he gave t h e s e  circumstances in determining 
whether to impose a death sentence. After reviewing the 
sentencing order and the record, we cannot determine that 
the trial judge's error in finding the cold, calculated 
and premeditated aggravating circumstance was harmless- 
Thus, the instant case must be remanded to the trial 
judge to reweigh the remaining aggravating circumstance 
and the statutory and nonstatutory mitigating circum- 
stances established in the record, 

Crump, 622 So. 2d at 973 (footnotes omitted). Despite this Court's 

mandate, the judge's sentencing order was not much more detailed 

this time. Although he clarified that he found that Crump suffered 

from mental impairment not reaching the statutory standard of 

mental mitigation,' he did not specify what other nonstatutory 

We assume the judge meant that he found both statutory 
mental mitigators but in a lesser degree than that required for 
"statutory" mitigation. This, of course, is not the correct 
standard. See Cheshire v. State, 568 So. 2d 908, 912 (Fla. 1990) 
("[IJt would clearly would be unconstitutional for the state to 
restrict the trial court's consideration solely to "extreme" 
emotional disturbances. Under the case law, any emotional dis- 
turbance relevant to the crime must be considered and weighed by 
the sentencer, no matter what the statutes say.") 



mitigation he found except to say that Crump exhibited "a few 

positive character traits." (R. 40-41) 

Had the trial judge agreed to consider Dr. Berland's testimo- 

ny, he would have had a basis to clear up his prior uncertainty as 

to whether, and to what extent, the mental mitigation was estab- 

lished and, perhaps, would have been able to write a clearer and 

more precise sentencing order.g Instead, he merely expanded his 

previous order slightly.'' Although he wrote that he would not 

change his mind even if the mental mitigation met the level 

In Carter v. State, 560 So. 2d 1166, 1168 (Fla. 1990), the 
psychologist (Dr. Dee) diagnosed Carter has having organic brain 
syndrome or brain damage. He described the symptoms of this malady 
similarly to Dr. Isaza's deecription of Crump's mental problems. 
He testified that Carter was abnormally impulsive, which included 
rage reactions and emotional instability. He had a diminished 
capacity to reason and plan, and was unable to premeditate. 

Although Dr. Isaza describe Crump's mental problem similarly 
to Dr. Dee's description of Carter's symptoms, she did not discuss 
whether Crump had organic brain damage. Defense counsel believed 
that she had some difficulty with the language. (T. 12-13) Had the 
trial judge agreed to read Dr. Berland'a testimony, he might have 
better understood Crump's mental disorder. 

e 

lo In his original order, the trial judge found that: 

1. The capital felony for which the Defendant is to be sentence 
was committed while he may have possibly been under the influence 
of extreme mental or emotional disturbance as evidenced by expert 
testimony in the case. 

2. The capacity of the Defendant to appreciate the criminality of 
his conduct or to conform his conduct to the requirements of law 
may have possibly been substantially impaired as evidenced by 
expert testimony in the case. 

3 .  Any other aspect of the Defendant's character or record, any 
other circumstance of the offense as evidenced by expert and lay 
testimony in the case. (TR. 691) 

The resentencing order is set out on page 3 ,  infra. 
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required for statutory mitigation, had he read Dr. Berland's e testimony, he might have found more extensive mitigation, This 

Court is not aided in its proportionality review by knowing that, 

even if he had found that the two mental mitigators rose to the 

statutory level, he still would not change his mind. 

As this Court held, "the onlv limitation on introducing miti- 

gating evidence is that it be relevant to the case at hand . . . . I '  

Kinq v. State, 514 So. 2d 354, 358 (Fla. 1987) (emphasis added); 

see also O'Callashan v. State, 542 So. 2d 1324 (Fla. 1989). The 

evidence Appellant proffered was clearly relevant to the sentence 

he should receive. He wanted to present compelling evidence to 

substantiate the two statutory mental mitigators, including the 

connection between his criminal behavior and the type of mental 

problem which produced it. This is precisely the type of evidence 

this Court has found mitigating in a number of cases. See, e.q., 

DeAnselo v. State, 616 So. 2d 440, 443 (Fla. 1993) ("More impor- 

tantly, DeAngelo presented significant mental mitigation,"); Scott 

v. State, 603 So. 2d 1275 (Fla. 1992); Carter v. State, 560 So. 2d 

1166 (Fla. 1990) (override improper because defendant's mental 

capacity, psychological state and childhood abuse provided reason- 

able basis to support jury's life recommendation); State v. Sireci, 

502 So. 2d 1221 (Fla. 1987) (evidentiary hearing required to deter- 

mine whether two psychiatrists appointed before trial conducted 

competent evaluations); Mason v. State, 489 So. 2d 734 (Fla. 1986) 

(new sentencing proceedings mandated in cases that entail psychi- 

atric evaluations which are so grossly insufficient that they 
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ignore clear indications of mental retardation or organic brain 

damage). Psychiatric testimony is always relevant to the sentenc- 

ing in a capital case. This particular evidence had already been 

admitted in another capital case involving the same defendant. In 

other words, the court had no reason to exclude the evidence. 

This error was clearly not harmless. Had the trial court 

considered Dr. Berland's testimony, he might have found that the 

two mental mitigators "reached the level of statutory mitigation, I' 

and might have found other nonstatutory mitigation. Even if he 

did not, or if, as he stated in his order, it would not have 

changed his sentence," thia Court would have had Dr. Berland's 

testimony to review and perhaps a clearer and more detailed written 

sentencing order to review. This court would more easily be able 

to make a proportionality analysis and remand for a life sentence. 

Moreover, the denial of due process is never harmless. 

(B) The trial court erred by.denying Crump's 
motion to consider evidence that he adjusted 
well to prison life and was not a behavioral 
problem. 

Prior to the reaentencing hearing, defense counsel filed a 

"Motion to Consider New Evidence," alleging that Crump had adapted 

The judge's statement that even if the mental mitigation 
reached the level of statutory mitigation, he would still sentence 
Crump to death is reminiscent of the  boiler-plate language used by 
many judges in their sentencing guidelines departure orders. This 
Court expressly disapproved boiler-plate findings such as ''if any 
one departure reason is sustained on appeal, the sentence would be 
the same," finding that it does not satisfy the standard set forth 
in Albritton v. State, 476 So. 2d 158 (Fla. 1985). See Mathis V. 
State, 515 So. 2d 514, 215 n.1 ( F l a .  1987); Griffis v. State, 509 
So. 2d 1104 (Fla. 1987). Certainly, then such reasonless boiler- 
plate would not sustain a sentence of death. 
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well to prison life and that testimony would establish his 

adjustment. He asked the trial court to consider evidence of 

Crump'e adjustment to prison life. (R. 4 2 )  At the sentencing 

hearing, the prosecutor agreed with defense counsel that the trial 

court could consider new evidence but said she was not in a 

position to say whether the judge should consider the evidence 

concerning Crump's adjustment to prison because she did not know 

what the evidence consisted of. She had not called the prison, so 

objected to the introduction of evidence "absent my ability to 

refute it." (T. 4 )  

Although defense counsel attempted to make further argument 

concerning admission of this evidence, the judge misunderstood what 

he was leading into and cut him off. (T. 17) When he cited to 

Sonqer v. State,12 the court interrupted him, and told him that, 

despite the State's suggestion, he would not consider applying the 0 
"heinous, atrocious and cruel" ( "HAC" ) aggravating factor. Sonser 

deals not with HAC, but with the mitigating nature of evidence that 

the defendant has adjusted well to prison life. 

Evidence of the defendant's good prison record must be con- 

sidered in mitigation. Skipper v. South Carolina, 4 7 6  U.S. 1 

(1986) (reversed because trial court excluded evidence that 

defendant behaved well in jail); Kramer v. State, 619 So. 2d 2 7 4 ,  

2 7 6  & n.1, 2 7 8  (Fla. 1993) (that Kramer was a model prisoner and 

good worker during prior incarceration implies potential for 

l2 In Sonser v. State, 544  So. 2d 1010 (Fla. 1989), this Court 
found that Songer's history of adapting well to prison life and 
using his time for self-improvement was a mitigating factor. 
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rehabilitation and productivity in prison); Sonqer v. State, 544 

So. 2d 1010 (Fla. 1989) (trial court erred by excluding evidence of 

defendant's exemplary adjustment to prison life and rehabilitation 

while i n  prison); Craiq v. State, 510 So. 2d 857 (Fla. 1987) 

(remanded for resentencing because trial judge excluded evidence 

that defendant behaved well while in jail awaiting trial and 

sentencing); Valle v. State, 502 So. 2d 1225 (Fla. 1987) (remanded 

for new jury recommendation and resentencing because trial court 

erroneously excluded testimony concerning defendant's rehabilita- 

tion and conduct in prison). In Menendez v. State, 419 So. 2d 312 

(Fla. 1982), testimony at his resentencingthat he had demonstrated 

a capacity for rehabilitation may have made the difference between 

a life or death sentence. His sentence was reduced to life. 

@ 

Just before the judge pronounced sentence, Michael Crump told 

him that since he had been in the prison system, he had not had 

"any No. 2 DR's in camplying with things that I should do" and was 

"trying to rehabilitate myself." (T. 2 2 )  This is exactly the kind 

of evidence this Court found mitigating in Sonqer, 544 So. 2d 1010. 

* * * * *  

The judge expressed his interpretation of this Court's 

mandate as follows: 

The Supreme Court of Florida did not order a new penalty 
phase hearing. They did not even order that this Court 
reappoint Mr. Cunningham to represent Mr. Crump. They 
did n o t  even order this Court to conduct a hearing. They 
merely directed the trial judge to reweigh the circum- 
stances and resentence the defendant. 

It's obvious to this Court since I was the trial judge 
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that all I had to do was writ Mr. Crump back from the 
Florida State Prison and resentence'him after reweighing 
the circumstances. But, in an abundance of caution, I 
chose to reappoint Mr. Cunningham to represent Mr. Crump 
and we have a hearing as to a proper sentence, whether he 
should be sentenced to the electric chair or whether he 
should be sentenced to life imprisonment without the 
possibility of parole for 25 years. 

(T. 10) 

Despite the hearing, however, the judge refused to allow new 

evidence and prepared his order prior to hearing arguments of 

counsel and the Appellant's statement, which shows that he did not 

engage in a reasoned judgment in weighing the aggravating and 

mitigating circumstances. (See Issue 111, infra.) Because the 

evidence proffered by defense counsel was expressly relevant, based 

on case law cited earlier in this issue, and because the t r i a l  

court is clearly required to consider all mitigating evidence, see 
Parker V. Duqqer, 498 U.S. 308; Scull, 5 6 9  So. 2d at 1253; Lucas, 

490  So. 2d at 945; Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.780, if Crump's sentence is 
e 

not reduced to life (see Issue VI), he must be given a new 

sentencing hearing in accordance with due process. 
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ISSUE IT 

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED BY FAILING TO 
FIND AND GIVE SIGNIFICANT WEIGHT TO 
THE UNREBUTTED MITIGATING EVIDENCE 
AS REQUIRED BY THIS COURT, THUS 
INVALIDATING THE WEIGHING PROCESS. 

The sentencer must be allowed to consider and give effect to 

mitigating evidence relevant to the defendant's background and 

character precisely because the punishment should be directly 

related to the personal culpability of the defendant. Penry v. 

Lvnaush, 492 U.S. 302, 327-28 (1989). Moreover, the Eighth and 

Fourteenth Amendments require that capital punishment be imposed 

fairly, and with reasonable consistency, or not at all. Eddinqs V. 

Oklahoma, 455 U.S. 104, 114 (1982); Amend. VIII, U.S. Const.; Amend 

XIV, U.S. Const. To insure fairness and consistency, this Court 

must conduct a meaningful independent review of the defendant's 

record and cannot ignore evidence of mitigating circumstances. 

Parker v. Duqqer, 498 U.S. 308, 321 (1991). 

0 

To insure the proper consideration of evidence of mitigating 

circumstances this Court determined that the trial court must 

expressly evaluate each mitigating circumstance to determine 

whether it is supported by the evidence and whether nonstatutory 

factors are truly mitigating in nature. Campbell v. State, 571 So. 

2d 415, 419 (Fla. 1990). If the evidence reasonably establishes a 

given mitigating factor (question of fact) and if the factor is 

mitigating in nature (question of law), the judge must find it as 

a mitigating circumstance and weigh it against the aggravating 

factors. The judge's decision must be supported by "sufficient 
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competent evidence in the record." The Campbell Court held that 

the trial judge must, in his written sentencing order, expressly 

evaluate every statutory and nonstatutory mitigating factor 

proposed by the defendant. Id. In this case, the judge failed to 

find and properly weigh all of the mitigating factors. 

0 

The court must find that a mitigating circumstance has been 

proved if it is supported by a reasonable quantum of competent, 

uncontroverted evidence. Nibert v. State, 574 So. 2d 1059, 1062 

(Fla. 1990). "Once established, a mitigating circumstance may not 

be given no weight at all." Dailev v. State, 594 So. 2d 254,  259 

(Fla. 1991). The trial court may only reject a defendant's claim 

that a mitigating circumstance has been proved if the record 

contains "competent substantial evidence to support the rejection 

of these mitigating circumstances." Nibert 574 So. 2d a t  1062; 

Kisht v. State, 512 So. 2d 922, 933 (Fla. 1987), cert. denied, 485 

U . S .  929 (1988); Cook v. State, 542 So. 2d 964, 971 (Fla. 1989) 

(court's discretion will not be disturbed if the record contains 

"positive evidence" to refute evidence of mitigating circumstance) . 
Every mitigating factor apparent in ,the entire record, both 

statutory and nonstatutory, must be considered and weighed in 

determining the sentence. Maxwell v. State, 603 So. 2d 490, 491 

(Fla. 1992); Cheshire v. State, 568  So. 2d 908,  912 (Fla. 1990); 

accord Santos v. State, 5 9 1  So. 2d 160 (Fla. 1991). 

Defense counsel filed a "Motion to Confirm Mitigators" prior 

to the resentencing. (R. 38-39) In his prior sentencing order, the 

judge found that the two statutory mental mitigators "may" have 
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been proven. Defense counsel argued that the testimony of the 

expert psychologist (Dr. Isaza) was unrefuted. See Nibert v. State, 

574 So. 2d 1059 ( F l a .  1990) (when reasonable quantum of competent, 

uncontroverted evidence of mitigating circumstance is presented, 

trial court must find mitigating circumstance established). 

At the sentencing hearing, the prosecutor agreed that the 

judge should consider evidence put on at the original trial and 

decide what weight, if any, to give to it. (T. 4-5)  The trial 

judge said, "And the Motion to Confirm Mitigators, the Court just 

doesn't understand what that means. The Court is required to make 

specific findings of aggravating factors and mitigating factors. 

So I don't know what that means, (T. 11) 

Defense counsel argued in support of his motion that Dr. Isaza 

said that Crump might be perfectly normal an hour before and 

something triggered him and this happened. The State put on no 

psychiatric or medical testimony. Even after the prosecutor cross- 

examined Dr, Isaza, attempting to discredit her testimony, she 

still believed Crump was impaired at the time of the offenses. (T. 

14-15)  Defense counsel wanted the judge to confirm that the mental 

mitigators were established in the absence of any contradictory 

evidence. (R. 16-17) The judge denied the motion. (T. 21) 

In his sentencing order, the judge stated that "The only 

reasonably convincing Mitigating Circumstances established by the 

evidence are that the Defendant possessed a few positive character 

traits and suffered from mental impairment not reaching the 

statutory standards of mental mitigation." (R. 4 0 )  We do not 
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disagree with the mitigation found by the court, but only with the 

"slight" weight given it and judge's failure to set out the many 

nonatatutory mitigators presented, and unrebutted, by the lay 

witnesses, and described merely as "a few positive character 

traits" by the judge. 

Dr. Isaza, the only mental health expert who testified at 

Crump' s trial, said that Michael Crump was under extreme mental and 

emotional disturbance at the time of the homicides, and that his 

capacity to appreciate the criminality of his conduct was substan- 

tially impaired. (TR. 494 ,  510) Although there was unrebutted 

evidence to support the two statutory mental mitigators, the judge 

found that they did not "reach the statutory standard" for the 

statutory mental mitigating factors. His conclusions are not 

supported by the evidence, and one can only speculate as to his 

reasoning. The record of the penalty phase testimony in the 

instant case contains much convincing and uncontroverted factual 

testimony by Dr. Isaza concerning Crump's mental and emotional 

incapacities. $ee Santos,  5 9 1  So. 2d at 163 (psychological experts 

supported conclusions with "unrebutted factual testimony"). 

This Court has effectively removed the adjective "extreme" 

from the statutory circumstance: 

[I]t would clearly would be unconstitutional 
for the state to restrict the trial court's 
consideration solely to "extreme" emotional 
disturbances. Under the case law, any emo- 
tional disturbance relevant to the crime must 
be considered and weighed by the sentencer, no 
matter what the statutes say. Lockett; Rosers. 
Any other rule would render ,Florida's death 
penalty statute unconstitutional. 
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Cheshire v. State, 5 6 8  So. 2d 908, 912 (Fla. 1990). Thus, the 

trial court was required to consider and give weight to the 

statutory mental mitigators despite his belief that they did not 

"reach" the statutory level. Although he gave them "slight" 

weight, mental mitigation must be accorded a significant amount of 

0 

weight based on this court's decisions. See, e.q., Santos v. State, 

629 So. 2d 838 (Fla. 1994); DeAnqelo v. State, 616 So. 2d 440 (Fla. 

1993); Nibert v. State, 574 So. 2d 1059 (Fla. 1990); Carter v. 

State, 560 So. 2d 1166 (Fla. 1990); State v. Sireci, 502 So. 2d 

1221 (Fla. 1987); Mason v. State, 489 So. 2d 734 (Fla. 1986). 

The record also contains a number of nonstatutory mitigating 

aspects of Crump's character which the judge did not mention in his 

order except for his reference to "a few positive character 

traits." In Harmon v. State, 527 So. 2d 182, 189 (Fla. 1988), the 

court noted that a jury recommendation of life might be based in 

part on evidence that the defendant was "a good father as well as 

a gaod son." Michael Crump was married and had three children. 

(TR. 469) His mother testified that he'was a good son. She said 

he was kind, considerate, and friendly, and helped anyone who 

needed help. Michael's two sisters testified that he got along 

well with the family and did a lot of work around the house. A 

friend of one of Crump's sisters also testified that Crump was 

helpful and got along well with her children. (TR. 463-75) A 

desire to help others was found mitigating in Sonqer v. State, 544 

So. 2d 1010, 1012 (Fla. 1989). See also Calmbell, 511 So. 2d at 

419 n.4; Thompson v. State, 456 So, 2d 444, 448 (Fla. 1984). 
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In Maxwell v, State, 603 So. 2d 490 (Fla. 1992), the defendant 

shot a man playing golf when he protested giving up a ring from his 

wife. 603 So. 2d at 4 9 3  (Grimes, J., dissenting). This Court 

remanded for resentencing due to Hitchcock error.13 The case 

involved two aggravating factors and at least five mitigating 

factors. Mitigation approved by this Court included many factors 

also apparent from the penalty phase testimony in Crump's case. 

Maxwell's neighbor testified that Maxwell had helped her repeatedly 

since she was eleven years old; another neighbor testified that 

Maxwell frequently helped him with his aix children and yard work 

and that he was good with children; another neighbor testified that 

Maxwell had been ''a good boy and neighbor'' and would volunteer to 

help with work around her house. 603 So. 2d at 491.  

@ 

Maxwell, an illegitimate child, was raised by his grandmother 

until she became too ill to care for him. He then lived with his 

father. He helped his father with housework and chores. He was 

good with the neighborhood ~hi1dren.l~ He was raised in poverty, 

without proper guidance, in an unstable home. 603 So. 2d at 491-92. 

This Court found that the evidence established as valid nonstatuto- 

ry mitigators that (1) Maxwell had been good earlier in life and 

was the product of parental neglect; (2) had a disadvantaged youth; 

( 3 )  had potential for rehabilitation and might be productive in 

prison, as supported by positive personality traits and good deeds 

0 

l3 Hitchcock v. Duqqer, 481 U.S. 393 (1987). 

This Court noted that the State did not controvert 
Maxwell's father's testimony although appellate counsel attempted 
to discredit some of the mitigating evidence. 603 So. 2d at 492.  

14 
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he had done; ( 4 )  was a hard worker who helped his family and 

others; and (5) family and friends believed he was a good prospect 

for rehabilitation and that he had been friendly and helpful to 

others and good with children. 603 So. 2d at 492 ,  

In the case at hand, Michael Crump waa raised without a 

father. (TR. 4 8 7 )  His mother testified that Crump was a slow 

learner in school. (TR. 458-59) She described her son as "kind, 

considerate, thoughtful and playful," She said Michael was 

friendly and outgoing and helped anyone who needed help. (TR. 459- 

60) Crump's sister testified that she helped care for Crump when 

he was an infant and small child. (TR, 463-66)  Michael got along 

well with the family and did a lot of work around the house. (TR. 

466-68) Another sister never lived at home when Michael was 

growing up but went by daily. After she moved to St. Petersburg, 

Michael visited her during the summer. Be got along well with her 

children and helped around the house. (TR. 468-70)  Her neighbor in 

St. Petersburg, formerly a social worker with HRS, testified that 

Michael visited her frequently when he was a child, talked to her, 

helped around the house, and babysat while she went to the store. 

He was very good with her four children. (TR. 472-75)  She saw no 

evidence of violence in Michael. (TR. 4 7 5 )  Accordingly, the five 

nonstatutosy mitigators attributed to Maxwell, and accorded 

significant weight by this Court, also apply to Michael Crump. 

Other decisions of this Court establish that a defendant's 

disadvantaged family background and/or his traumatic childhood and 

adolescence are valid nonstatutory mitigating factors. See Nibert 
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v. State, 574 So. 2d 1059, 1061-62 (Fla. 1990); Stevens v. State, 

552 So. 2d 1082, 1086 (Fla. 1989); Brown v. State, 526 So. 2d 903, 

907-08, (Fla. 1988); Burch Y. State, 522 So. 2d 810, 813 (Fla. 

1988); Rosers v. State, 511 So. 2d 526, 535 (Fla. 1987), cert, 

denied, 484 U.S. 1020 (1988); Hansbrouqh v. State, 509 So. 2d 1081, 

1086 (Fla. 1987); see also Eddinqs v. Oklahoma, 455 U.S. at 107, 

115 (evidence of a difficult childhood is mitigating). Csump had 

the capacity to form loving relationships with his mother, sister, 

wife and children. (TR. 185-87, 261) See Parker v. State, 19 Fla, 

L. Weekly S390, 392 (Fla. Aug. 11, 1994) (defendant's capacity to 

form loving relationships w i t h  family and friends worthy of jury's 

0 

consideration as mitigation). 

Michael Crump grew up without a father or any father figure. 

(TR. 487) His sisters were both much older than Crump. One sister 

and her family lived with Crurnp and his mother until Crump was 

seven years old. (TR. 463-66) The other sister never lived at 

home while Crump was growing up. (TR. 468) Crump told Dr. Isaza 

that he was shy and had difficulty establishing relationships with 

women. Thus, he began engaging prostitutes at the age of sixteen. 

(TR. 509) Dr. Isaza said that his feelings of manhood depended on 

his sexual performance. (TR. 490) Surely, his lack of a father 

figure played a part in this problems. The trial court's failure 

to expressly identify, evaluate, find, and weigh all of the 

unrefuted nonstatutory mitigating circumstances established by the 

evidence was reversible error requiring remand. Nibert, 574 So. 2d 

at 1062; Campbell, 571 So. 2d at 419. 
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